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1. Information pertaining to the bulk compliance requirements for the Manheim Auction Site 
parcel, based on a reduction in the lot area for that site must be provde.  Lot surface coverage 
should specifically be identified.  Manheim use received a ZBA interpretation in the past as a 
dealership of new motor vehicles and ZBA issued bulk requirements at that time. 
 

2. The Federal Wetlands Delineation should be provided for the site. 
 

3. The EAF identifies habitat for Threatened or Endangered Species including the Indiana Bat and 
Upland Sandpiper NYSDEC review of impacts must be obtained. 
 

4. The applicant has stated that the Red Maple Hardwood Forest, a significant natural community 
does not exist on the site.  Analysis during the Tree Survey should be utilized to confirm this. 
 

5. The project is subject to the recently adopted Tree Preservation Ordinance.  Compliance with 
that ordinance should be provided in a report and map. 
 

6. The Toyota of Newburgh facility operates an overflow inventory lot on Lot 69.11.  Status of this 
use should be addressed with the Board.  Previously a lease agreement between Toyota and 
Manheim existed to allow the use.   Property is now transferring ownership and will not be a 
motor vehicle use.  
 

7. The project appears to include a subdivision/ lot line change of Tax Lot 69.11.  Appropriate 
subdivision mapping should be submitted.  The subdivision should be referenced in any 
environmental review documents including the EAF. 
 

8. NYSDOT approval for the access drive is required. 
 

9. Orange County Planning review is required due to proximity to the state highways.   
 

10. FAA approval, No Hazard letter, will be required due to proximity to the airport. 
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11. The project proposes a single access point.  Fire Code requires two points of access to the site. 
 

12. No grading Plan is provided, however extensive retaining walls identified as 50+/- feet in height 
are depicted on the plan. 
 

13. The building will be required to be sprinklered.  A water tank is identified on the site for fire 
flow.  Design of the water system should be included in future submissions. 
 

14. The access road appears to have a right-out only from the site.  This should be clarified. 
 

15. The following additional studies should be provided in future submissions: 
A. Traffic Study. 
B. Wetland Analysis. 
C. Tree Preservation Ordinance Compliance. 
D. Geologic Analysis for bedrock/rock removal. 
E.  fill import / export from the site. 
F. Stormwater Pollution Prevention Plan. 
G. Threatened or Endangered Species Impacts 
H. FAA No Hazard Report. 
I. Zoning Analysis for Manheim site. 

 
16. Provisions for sanitary sewer should be identified on the plans.   The existing sanitary sewer line 

in Route 17K operates as a low-pressure force main. 
 

17. Detailed Utility Plans within Route 17K should be provided. 
 

18. The project will be subject to ARB review in the future.  ARB review should include renderings of 
the site with the extensive retaining walls proposed. 
 

19. The project appears to have access to Homewood Avenue.  A potential emergency access road 
should be evaluated at this location. 
 

20. The Planning Board should consider declaring its intent for Lead Agency in the future.  The EAF 
must be revised to incorporate the subdivision/lot line revision. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
MHE Engineering, D.P.C. 
 

 
Patrick J. Hines 
Principal 
PJH/kbw 












































































